
SCRUTINY : REGENERATION AND 
PUBLIC PROTECTION MEETING

2.30 pm TUESDAY, 11TH SEPTEMBER, 2018

COUNCIL CHAMBER

A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 2.00 pm.  
This Meeting is for Committee Members only 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 
the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 

possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Homelessness Strategy Update 
To consider report of the Chief Officer Community 
Regeneration

3 - 14

4. Work Programme 2018/19 
To consider the attached report 15 - 24

5. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow Up 
Actions 

6. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair

7. Any Other Business as deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillors:  J Amos (Chair)
                     B Carter (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: C J Barry, S P Brown, M Colbran and 
G Lewis

Co-optee(s): H Hopkins, H Jackson and M Ellis

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Homelessness Strategy - Update 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report will update members of the committee with the progress made by the 
 Housing Department in relation to producing a corporate Homelessness Strategy for    
 2019 – 2024. 
 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 To note the content and raise any queries 
 
2.2 To provide feedback on the work undertaken to date and to provide suggestions or 
 comments relating to the remaining stages of the work required to complete and 
 adopt the new strategy 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This report focusses specifically on the work undertaken and emerging outcomes for 

the Council’s future Homelessness Strategy. Members will note homelessness 
reports and updates have been provided in October 2017 and February 2018 to the 
Committee. 

 
3.2 The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 placed a legal responsibility on all local authorities to 
 develop a four year homelessness strategy, to be approved in 2018, which will 
 outline the corporate approach to preventing and alleviating homelessness. 
 

Date Written 28th August 2018 

Report Author Julian Pike 

Service Area Housing 

Committee Date 11th September 2018 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 The new homelessness regime within the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 came into force 
 in April 2015. As the legislation is very complicated and its implementation very 
 subjective at an operational level, only now are local authorities beginning to record 
 data in a more consistent way. 
 
4.2 The national statistics for 2015-16 were de-classified as a national dataset due to 
 inconsistency in the recording of outcomes data by local authorities, a major cause 
 of which was case management systems which were incapable of recording multiple 
 outcomes per case, rather than only one outcome per case (recorded under the 
 previous homelessness legislation). 
 
4.3 Figure 1 below outlines the number of households THREATENED with 
 homelessness (for which the Council has an opportunity to prevent them becoming 
 homeless) 
 

 Households 
threatened 
with 
homelessness 

Households 
with a 
successful 
outcome 

Prevention 
Rate 

Welsh 
Prevention 
Rate 

2016/17 102 63 62% 62% 

2017/18 114 60 53% 66% 

 
4.4 The main reasons for a household being threatened with homelessness have 
 remained the same for 2016/17 and 2017/18. These are the loss of a rented 
 property, or rent arrears in the private or socially rented sector.  
 
4.5 Figure 2 below outlines the number of households who presented to the Council as 
 currently homeless and those for whom the Council was working with, but could not 
 prevent their homelessness 
 

 Homeless 
Households 

Households 
with a 
successful 
outcome 

Relief Rate Welsh relief 
Rate 

2016/17 210 76 36% 41% 

2017/18 239 79 33% 41% 

 
4.6 The main reasons for a household becoming homeless in 2017/18 is parents 

asking them to leave; Non Violent Relationship Breakdown and leaving prison: 
 
 
4.7 The key information to explain why Merthyr Tydfil’s prevention rate and relief rate is 
 lower than the Welsh average is: 

 83% of presentations to the service are single people (2017-18) 

 The local housing allowance (LHA) rate for a single person under 35 years of 
age is only £48. This is the housing costs they will receive towards private 
rented accommodation. A typical one bed flat or bedsit in Merthyr is between 
£60 - £70 p/w. Therefore the private rented sector is unaffordable for all under 
35’s who are not working. 

Page 4



 There is a distinct lack of one bed accommodation in both the social and 
private rented sector, this leads to significant unmet housing need within the 
local housing market 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1  The Homelessness Review part of our emerging strategy requires local 
 authorities to undertake a Homelessness Review to consider the following  issues: 

 The prevention of homelessness; 

 Suitable accommodation is and will be available for people who ae or may  become 

homeless; and 

 Satisfactory support is available for people who are or may become homeless. 

 

5.2 This element of the work has been completed. The engagement work started in 

 November 2017 when the Housing Department organised the first ever 

 homelessness seminar in the Orbit Centre, inviting a wide range of statutory 

 partners, agencies, volunteers and individuals who had experienced homelessness 

 first hand. 

 

5.3 Throughout 2018 a range of engagement activities have been undertaken, led by the 

 Housing Strategy Officer and Housing Manger including (but not limited to): 

 An online questionnaire, which was advertised to the public and   

 partners through all media channels, which was open for 6 weeks; 

 Questionnaires sent to specific key partners; 

 Focus groups;  

 One to One meetings with volunteer leads; 

 Councillor briefings; 

 Meetings with internal departments; 

 Staff feedback/discussion sessions. 

 

5.4 All of which sought to involve and empower people who have experienced 

 homelessness or have a view on it, to be able to make their views known. 

 

5.5 In addition to external sources of information, significant internal data has been 

captured and analysed to provide us with service intelligence and provide a clearer 

picture of homelessness in Merthyr Tydfil 

 

5.6  Some of the key findings include: 

 

5.7 Affordability: The private rented sector in Merthyr Tydfil is becoming increasingly 

 unaffordable for households reliant on Housing Benefit or universal Credit to pay the 

 rent. 

 

 

Page 5



 

 

 Figure 3:  Rent shortfall if in receipt of full LHA rate 

 

 

                     

One Bed
under 35

One Bed over
35

Two Bed Three Bed

Average Rent 375 375 459 522

max LHA 208 293 349 380

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

 
 

5.8 The graph shows monthly rent amounts following the introduction of Universal 
 Credit, those  dependent on benefits now receive their payments monthly. The 
 monthly rent shortfalls are show below: 
 

Property Type Monthly Shortfall 

One Bed under 35 £167 

One Bed over 35 £82 

Two Bed £110 

Three Bed £142 

  

5.9 Analysing these shortfalls using average Universal Credit Rates, the remaining 
 income households have for the month is as follows (i.e. money to pay for essential 
 living costs- food, travel, energy etc..) 
 

Property Type Monthly Income after 
housing costs 

Weekly Income after 
housing costs 

One Bed under 35 £117 £27 

One Bed over 35 £235 £54 

Two Bed £568 £131 

Three Bed £767 £177 

 
5.10 Welfare Reform: A 2016 report by Sheffield Hallam University found that by 2020/21 

the average annual loss of income for a working age Adult in Merthyr Tydfil would be 
£470 (Beatty et al 2016: 19). This equates to the 17th largest loss of income for the 
UK as a whole. The high level of impact of Welfare Reform in Merthyr Tydfil has 
been attributed to the fact that nearly 25% of the population aged 16-64 claim 
working age benefits (Welsh Government 2014). The loss of income is not 
distributed evenly across the Borough.  

 
Page 6



  
 
            Figure 4: Average annual income loss per household by 2020/21 
 

           
 
 
5.11 There is a significant shortage of one bed accommodation available in the social and 
 private rented sector. The properties are available in the private rented sector require 
 bonds, payment in advance, references and come with a rental value of £60-£70 
 which is totally unaffordable for anyone under 35 years old and on Universal Credit. 
 
5.12  The vast majority of homelessness is alleviated by the Housing Solutions Team 
 securing a housing association property for the client. The numbers are increasing 
 are probably unsustainable.  
 
5.13 Service demand is increasing year on year – coupled with an increasing number of 
 complex cases, means that the Council’s ability to meet its statutory obligations is 
 being increasingly difficult with current resources. 
 
5.14 Merthyr Tydfil has the 5th highest number of citizens in prison of all 22 LAs. The three 
 cities are top then Flintshire then Merthyr Tydfil – with 250 citizens in prison as of 
 June 2018. This disproportionate number of offenders provides a significant 
 challenge for the Housing Solutions Team – as depending on the nature of the 
 offence, significant additional work is required to secure them or help them secure 
 accommodation upon release. 
 
 
5.15 Housing Need – it is clear that the demand for one bed accommodation is 

outstripping supply. The low numbers of affordable and available one bed 
accommodation in the private rented sector means that the Council are increasingly 
over reliant on social sousing to successfully discharge our prevention and relief 
duties. This is unsustainable. 

 
  

Page 7



 Figure 5 – Housing Need for general purpose one bed accommodation 
 

             
 

5.16 Rough Sleeping - is the most acute and visible form of homelessness. For the last 
two years, the Welsh Government has required local authorities to conduct a count 
of rough sleepers. For a two week period in the autumn, questionnaires are sent to 
third sector and voluntary organisations in the borough known to engage with rough 
sleepers, to establish how many individuals they are engaging with and where they 
are bedding down for the night. This information subsequently informs a mandatory 
(snap shot) one night physical rough sleeper count in November each year. Places 
identified, through intelligence, are visited and rough sleepers engaged with and 
encouraged to access support services. 

 
Figure 6: Merthyr Tydfil Rough Sleeper Count Outcomes 
 

             

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Estimated

Actual

 

NB: The estimated figures are the numbers provided in completed 
questionnaires. 

Page 8



5.17 There is a clear rise in the number of rough sleepers found on the one night count in 
the borough. This trend is a national phenomenon, with cities experiencing far 
greater increases in rough sleeping than Merthyr Tydfil.  

 
Some local volunteer organisations suggest the one night count approach, 
significantly underestimates the true numbers of regular rough sleepers. This may be 
due to the fact that the local rough sleeping population fluctuates throughout the year 
and is dependent on a wide range of factors such as:  

 Weather 

 The ability to stay with friends 

 Prison sentences 

 
5.18 Reliance on Temporary Accommodation - Our bed & breakfast use is increasing 

over time. Since the introduction of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 our use of B&B is 
steadily increasing. 

 
 Figure 7 – Increasing Use of B&B Accommodation 
 

                          

 
The average length of stay in 2018/17 was 16 nights. However there are several 
placements made for shorter lengths of time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Figure 6: Length of stay for all B&B placements 2017/18 
 

                
 

 
 As a Local Authority we do not just use B&B as interim/temporary accommodation. 
We also use the following types of accommodation: 

 Private Sector Leasing – 11 properties 

 Refuge Accommodation – for domestic abuse survivors 

 Hostels x2 – total of 20 beds 

 Flooks and Garth Newydd Court – for young people 

 ‘Tester’ flats – offered by Merthyr Valleys Homes 

Accurate figures are not available for the number of households placed in this 
accommodation in a financial year due to previous IT constraints which only allow us 
to report on the number of placements on a specific day. However, going forward 
with the introduction of a new IT system CIVICA, we will be able to report on this 
annually from 2018/19. 

 

6.0 FUTURE LEVELS OF HOMELESSNESS 
 
6.1 This review has established the factors that are likely to impact on the prevalence of 

homeless in Merthyr Tydfil going forward. However, many of these factors are socio-
economic factors that are outside of the direct control of the local authority. The 
factors outlined below have also been considered in the drafting of the objectives 
and actions: 

 

    High level of demand for social housing particularly general need single person 

accommodation. A sufficient supply of this accommodation is essential for us to 

meet our homelessness duties.  

    The current shortage of single person accommodation is highly likely to result in 

an increase of presentations from single people who are unable to resolve their 

Page 10



own housing need due to a lack of affordable suitable accommodation for this 

household type. 

    Increasing numbers of people with complex unmet support needs. These are 

mental health, substance misuse and individuals with offending histories.  

    The continuing effects of welfare reform - Merthyr Tydfil as a whole will be 

disproportionately affected by the ongoing reforms. This is going to continue to 

affect affordability of accommodation and the ability of households in receipt of 

benefits to continue to meet their housing costs especially in the private sector. 

    Ongoing public finding cuts against a background of increasing demand.  

    An ageing population which will require suitable housing and appropriate 

support to secure long-term appropriate accommodation for this age group 

    Changes to legislation and a possible expansion of the priority need categories 

as recommended by several recently published evaluation reports. This would 

increase the pressures on temporary accommodation. 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 We must complete the drafting of the Council’s homelessness strategy by the end of 
 September 2018, to allow us to consult on the draft document. It is envisaged that 
 the final homelessness strategy will be presented to Council for approval on 19th 
 December 2018, complying with the Welsh Government imposed deadline. 
 
7.2 The Homeless Strategy will outline the Council’s key priorities in tackling 
 homelessness locally. The following are likely to be said key priorities (although not 
 finalised yet) 
 

 Early intervention and prevention: It is clear that more work is needed to reduce the 

numbers of households made homeless as a result of relationship breakdowns and 

familial disputes. We need to consider ways to better connect existing services or 

whether new services need to be designed or procured, that look to provide early 

contact with citizens facing housing issues, with the aim of preventing crisis situations 

occurring, which may lead to an individual becoming homeless.  

 Temporary accommodation: We are heavily reliant on B&B to provide emergency 

temporary accommodation. This is proving to be costly to the local authority and is not 

the most appropriate form of accommodation for homeless households. The current 

reliance on B&B to meet our temporary accommodation duties also leaves the local 

authority exposed to significant risks should there be an incident in the premises. There 

is a clear need for alternative, more cost effective emergency accommodation spaces to 

be developed in the area. This provision also needs to be suitable for those high risk 

individuals who are difficult to place currently due to the risk they pose to themselves 

and others due to their mental health, offending history or substance use. 

 Single person accommodation: It is essential that the Council uses its social housing 

grant programme to development greater numbers of one bed general need properties. 

We also need to look at ways the private rented sector can be developed to assist in 

providing single person accommodation options.   

Page 11



 Rough Sleeping: There are several volunteer services that currently work with rough 

sleepers in the Borough. There is currently no outreach service provided by the Local 

Authority. There needs to be a specific strategy drafted to set out how we are going to 

meet the needs of this group going forward. 

 Service user involvement: Currently we do not effectively or critically evaluate the 

homelessness service. There is a clear need to evaluate the level of satisfaction with the 

service we currently provide and involve service users in this process. A clear message 

from some of the consultation responses was that some homeless people struggle to 

engage with the service in the Civic Centre fearing that service is provided in a very 

formal setting and in a formal manner. A more person centred approach to service 

delivery should be explored. 

 Support Services: with many more clients presented to the service having a range of 

complex needs, the support services commissioned by the Council, and those provided 

by partner organisations, must reflect this changing demographic, if the services 

provided are to be effective. 

7.3 The Homelessness Strategy will outline ‘how’ the Council intends to address the 
 above priorities. 
 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 Best Start to Life – there is significant evidence to show the devastating effects that 
homelessness can have on families with children. Being placed in temporary 
accommodation, for even the briefest of periods can be very upsetting and even 
neurologically damaging for children.  

The stress and anxiety caused within households facing homelessness inevitably 
leads to the prevalence of more Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) for children 
caught up in the situation. Many of the projects and services outlined in this report 
are aimed at preventing homelessness, providing support to families in crisis and to 
quickly find new accommodation for those who find themselves homeless.  

 
8.2 Working Life – it is very difficult if not impossible to sustain employment if an 

individual becomes homeless. Furthermore it is very difficult to focus upon finding 
employment, when an individual’s basic human needs – shelter, are not satisfied. 
Therefore homelessness services are crucial to enabling people to find and sustain 
employment. 

 
8.3  Living Well – chronic rough sleepers and those ‘marginally/tentatively housed’ are 

often (but not always) substance users and most, if not all, have three or more 
Adverse Childhood Experiences. This often leads them into crime to fund their habit, 
typically manifesting itself in petty crime such as shop lifting, but also more serious 
crime such as public order offences, violence and assaults. This behaviour inevitably 
has a negative impact on a communities’ perception of safety. Homelessness can 
have a catastrophic effect on a person’s physical and mental wellbeing.  

 
Numerous studies have shown that the prevalence of disease and mortality in rough 
sleepers for instance is far higher than the general population. At the less acute 
stages of homelessness – cases where persons are going without food to pay rent or 

Page 12



other costs (often debts) are sadly increasing with an inevitable detrimental effect on 
the person’s physical and mental health. The Homelessness Strategy will focus upon 
enabling people to find suitable and affordable accommodation which meets their 
needs and aspirations to live well and to live independently. 

 

 

 

 
ALYN OWEN 
CHIEF OFFICER – COMMUNITY 
REGENERATION 

CLLR GERAINT THOMAS 
REGENERATION & PUBLIC 

PROTECTION PORTFOLIO MEMBER 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

List the Background 
documents which have 
been relied on in 
preparing the report. 
E.g. previous minutes of 
relevant committees 

 
 

NONE N/A 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Work Programme / Rhaglenni Gwaith  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind scrutiny committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached draft work programme and approves, revises 
or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.2 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 29th August 2018 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 11th September 2018 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals. The key outcomes (or components) for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure that establishes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination. The key outcomes (or components) to support the 
response to this objective include:  
 

 Making skills work for Merthyr Tydfil: developing the workforce of the future;  

 Developing the environment and infrastructure for business to flourish;  

 Communities protect, enhance and promote our heritage and cultural assets;  

 Developing safer communities; and  

 Supporting and accommodating those most disadvantaged in the housing market. 
 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside. The key outcomes (or components) for communities to 
protect, enhance and promote our environment and countryside include:  
 

 Minimise environmental damage through prevention of pollution;  

 Maximise efficient use of materials and resources by means of the waste 
hierarchy;  

 Developing good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure and open 
spaces; and  

 Promoting and supporting the use of renewable and low carbon energy. 
 
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. To 
ensure a holistic approach is met in this objective, the key outcomes (or 
components) for Living Well will include:  
 

 Safeguarding children and adults who are at risk of harm;  

 Tackling adverse childhood experiences and developing community Resilience;  

 Promoting healthy behaviours and increased levels of physical activity;  

 Promote good emotional wellbeing and improved mental health;  

 Clear and accessible information and advice; and  

 Services that provide people with the ability to live in their own home 
 

 
3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 

that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 

Page 16



matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a scrutiny work programme? 
 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Wellbeing 
Objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the committee? 

             
This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue  
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation / review 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue 

 

Q) What outcome is the committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 
 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 

Page 17



d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  
 
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 
 
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet Members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 
 
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

  
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 
  

Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 
 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 
b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 
c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 

to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

Page 18



e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 
f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 
g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 

calls for evidence). 
 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 

 

APPENDIX I 

Page 20



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & 
Cabinet 
Member  

Scrutiny Focus  

5
th

 June 2018 

Scrutiny 
Committee Work 

Programme 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris 
Long / Steve 

Peters 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Committee to discuss the draft work programme as prepared by the 
Task and Finish Group 
 

Post-16 Home to 
School Transport – 
Post Consultation 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas /  

Alyn Owen / 
Paul Lewis 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Post-16 transport is discretionary.  The Transport Section is responsible for 
ensuring value for money; whilst the Education Department od responsible for the policy.  This 
report will provide Scrutiny Members with an update on the recent public consultation findings.  
Members are asked to note and debate the report’s content and to scrutinise the approach taken 
which has led to the identification of a preferred option amongst the 5 options listed within the 
body of the report. 

17
th

 July 2018 

Cyfarthfa Heritage 
Area 

Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long / Zoe 

Thomas 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee will receive a report on developments linked to 
the Cyfarthfa Heritage Area and the relationship with the Leisure Trust in ensuring the asset if 
effectively managed following the significant investment in the Heritage Area.  Officers will also 
offer Elected Members an update on the recent Design Commission Wales report and the 
Council’s involvement with this at this stage. 

11
th

 September 
2018 

Homelessness & 
Homelessness 

Prevention 
Strategy - Progress 

Update 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Steve 
Peters / Julian 

Pike 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Part 2 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 places a statutory requirement on 
every Local Council to produce a Homelessness Prevention Strategy that must be consulted upon; 
formulated and adopted by December 2018.  Officers will provide Elected Members with a 
progress update on the ongoing development of this Homelessness Prevention strategy and seek 
Members input on this. 
 

16
th

 October 
2018 

(As the Crime & 
Disorder 

Committee) 
 

Violent Crime: 
Violence Against 
Women & Girls 

Alyn Owen / 
Steve Peters / 

Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Violence against Women and Girls was found to be a key priority within 
the community safety needs assessment.  Members will be offered an overview of violent crime in 
general, with a specific focus on Violence Against Women and Girls. 
 

P
age 21



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27
th

 November 
2018 
 
 
 

 

Economic Growth 
Strategy & 
Partnership 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas /  

Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long  

 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Committee will receive a progress update on the Economic Growth 
Partnership’s activities and the development of the Economic Growth Strategy and accompanying 
Delivery Plan.  
 

Air Quality 
Management 
Action Plan – 

Progress Update 

Alyn Owen / 
Steve Peters / 

Susan Gow 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following the declaration of an Air Quality Management Area around 
Twynyrodyn Road, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is required to undertake formal public 
consultation to consider feedback against 3 options.  The Committee are requested to scrutinise 
the consultation process and feedback received from this public consultation and Elected 
Members will further support the development of the required Air Quality Action Plan. 

Introduction to the 
Geosense 

Intelligence System 

Alyn Owen  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Officers will offer a practical demonstration of the Geosense 
Data/Intelligence system which has recently been brought in to the Council by the Community 
Regeneration Team.   

15th January 
2019 

Continued 
Development of 

the Town Centre & 
the Night-time 

Economy 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas /  

Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long / 

Rhian Prosser /  
Paul Lewis / 
Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -  Following the Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 17th April 2018; 
Committee Members requested officers return to provide Members with an update including the 
further development of the Town Centre Master Plan and the night-time economy.   Members will 
also receive an update on Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs) to date along with early 
indicators of the outcomes noted.  

(As the Crime & 
Disorder 

Committee) 
 

Substance Misuse – 
Drug Litter update 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas /  

Alyn Owen / 
Paul Lewis / 
Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following presentation to the Scrutiny Committee on 17/04/18 around the 
issue of substance misuse and drug litter, officers were requested to return with an update on 
progress made.  Elected Members will be given a practical demonstration of the drug litter 
reporting app currently under development; whilst officers will demonstrate how the intelligence 
gathered through this app will impact on the Council’s response rates etc. 
 

5th March 
2019 

Destination 
Development – 

Progress Update 
 

Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long / 
Ryan Barry 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -   The Scrutiny Committee will receive an update report on the progress 
made linked to the work undertaken by the Council linked to Destination Development and will 
enable Members to identify progress made against the Destination Management Plan  

Active Travel Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long / 

Cheryl Jones / 
Alyn Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Scrutiny Committee Members will receive an update report on the work 
being undertaken linked to the Active Travel Act and scrutinise the process for the development of 
Active Travel Routes.  This report will include feedback on the findings of both the initial and 
follow-up consultation exercises. 

P
age 22



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

16th April 2019 

Trading Standards 
and Licensing 

Alyn Owen / 
Paul Lewis / 
Steve Peters 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report outlining how the work of this department contributes to public 
health & wellbeing will be delivered to Committee Members.  An update on the practical activities 
to reduce the risks of the public becoming victims to scams; rogue traders etc. will be given, and 
Members will be asked to consider methods of intelligence sharing with Trading 
Standards/Licensing which could support improved outcomes for citizens. 

(As the Crime & 
Disorder 

Committee) 
Cwm Taf 

Community Safety 
Partnership & Plan 
– Progress Update 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas /  

Alyn Owen / 
Steve Peters / 
Ryan Evans / 

Paul Lewis 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following a presentation to the Committee on 17/04/18; Members will 
receive an update on the requirement to develop an Action Plan against the key priorities 
identified following completion of the Cwm Taf Community Safety Needs Assessment.  Elected 
Members will be advised what the findings of the Cwm Taf Strategic Assessment has had in 
practical terms. 
 

 
Additional items to consider for Work 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Enterprise & Business Support Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long / 
Ryan Barry / 
Lance 
Whitely 

The Scrutiny Committee will receive a report on the developments associated 
with Enterprise and Business Support including an update on the Orbit Centre; 
the support available for Town Centre Businesses and the Social Enterprise 
Strategy 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Review of the Updated Common Housing 
Allocation Policy (Living Merthyr Tydfil) 

and its impact on Citizens 

Alyn Owen / 
Steve 
Peters / 
Julian Pike 

The refocused Common Housing Allocations Policy (Living Merthyr Tydfil) was 
approved by Councillors on 212nd March 2017; with a ‘go live’ data scheduled 
for 3rd April 2018.  Members will be asked to consider a report highlighting the 
initial outcomes linked to the amended Housing Allocation Policy and the 
impact this has had as well as the implementation of the new housing 
software package, CIVICA and its impact in assisting the allocation of social 
housing in accordance with the policy. 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

   

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Homelessness Strategy Update
	4 Work Programme 2018/19
	Appendix 1


